
 

 

Democratic Services ◦ Chief Executive’s Department ◦ Leicestershire County Council ◦ County Hall  

Glenfield ◦ Leicestershire ◦ LE3 8RA ◦ Tel: 0116 232 3232 ◦ Email: democracy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy    www.facebook.com/leicsdemocracy  

  
www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy  

 

 

 

 
  

 

Meeting: Flooding Scrutiny Review Panel  
 
 

 

Date/Time: Tuesday, 18 August 2020 at 2.00 pm 

Location: Microsoft Teams 

Contact: Miss. C. Tuohy 

Email: Tel: 0116 305 5483 

 
Membership 

 
Mr. D. C. Bill MBE CC 

Mr. D. Harrison CC 
Mr T. Parton CC 

 

Mr. S. D. Sheahan CC 
Mrs. M. Wright CC 
 

 
AGENDA 

 
Item   Report by   

 
1.  

  
Election of Chairman for the period of the 
review.  
 

 
 

 

2.  
  

Declarations of interest in respect of items on 
the agenda.  
 

 
 

 

3.  
  

Conduct of Scrutiny Review Panels.  
 

 (Pages 3 - 6) 

4.  
  

Scoping Document and Work Programme.  
 

 
 

(Pages 7 - 12) 

5.  
  

Flooding Presentation.  
 

Director of 
Environment and 
Transport 
 

(Pages 13 - 32) 

6.  
  

Date of next meeting.  
 
Members are asked to have diaries to hand for 
this item. 

 
 

 

mailto:democracy@leics.gov.uk
http://www.twitter.com/leicsdemocracy
http://www.facebook.com/LeicsDemocracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy
http://www.leics.gov.uk/local_democracy


This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

SCRUTINY REVIEW PANEL ON FLOODING – 18 AUGUST 2020 
 

CONDUCT OF SCRUTINY REVIEW PANELS 
 

BRIEFING PAPER OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 

Purpose 
 
To outline the procedures for conducting Scrutiny Review Panel meetings, 
predominantly in public session. 
 
Background 
 
Until 2009, Scrutiny Review Panels met in private though their final report was 
publicly available. The Scrutiny Commission at its meeting held on 1 September 
2009 reviewed this practice and considered the possibility of holding panel 
meetings in public.  
 
The Commission noted that meetings in private allowed for witnesses to be more 
forthcoming in their responses and allowed members to explore options which 
may be ‘unthinkable’ in the public domain. The Commission also recognised the 
need for greater openness and transparency in the review process. To that end 
the Commission has sought to balance these competing demands and has 
approved a move towards holding panel meetings in public but allowing Panels 
the option of moving into private session where this is appropriate.  
 
Conduct of meetings 
 
Appendix A sets out in brief the different stages in the review process and the 
specific stages when a Panel may wish to consider meeting in private. The 
process will be kept under review by the Commission and amended in the light of 
experience. 
 
Officer to Contact 
 
Cat Tuohy 
Democratic Serives Officer 
Tel: 0116 3055483 
Cat.tuohy@leics.gov.uk 
 

 

3 Agenda Item 3

mailto:Cat.tuohy@leics.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 
   

SCRUTINY REVIEW PANEL – PROCESS 
 

Stage in Review 
Process 

Comment  Public/Private 
 

Establishing a review Done at the Commission as a 
result, of say, public concern or 
issue identified as 
underperforming etc 
 

Public 

Scoping the review Done at the Commission on 
advice from the Scrutiny 
Commissioners 
 

Public 

Gathering baseline 
information 

i.e. the current level of service 
provision, costs, performance 
measures etc -  

done in public at the 
Panel unless there is 
a reason to go to 
private session e.g. 
dealing with detailed 
information on 
individuals or 
contract prices 
 

Identifying witnesses 
and other information 
required 
 

Done at the Panel Public 

Gathering evidence from 
Witnesses 

Done in private at the Panel but a 
record of evidence given to be 
made public after it has been 
agreed with the witness 
concerned. {as was the case with 
the eco town review panel) 
 

Private to start with 
 
Public record of 
proceedings 
 

Deliberations and 
assessment of evidence 
gathered and drawing 
key conclusions 
 

Done by the panel and allows 
members to explore options/ideas 
without risk. 

Private 

Draft conclusions 
/options paper 

The Panel may wish, depending 
on the subject matter, to consider 
a formal consultation on options. 
 

Public 
 

Deliberations and 
coming up with final 
conclusions 

Done in private at the Panel but 
the report to be publicly available 
 

Private  

Final Report To be published with the relevant 
Scrutiny Committee papers. 
 

Public 

 
 
 
 

5



This page is intentionally left blank



SCRUTINY REVIEW PANEL 
 

REVIEW TOPIC 
 

FLOODING 

LEAD SCRUTINY 
MEMBER 
 

 
 
 

 

OFFICER SUPPORT 
 

Officers from:- 
 
Environment and Transport 
Democratic Services 
 

RATIONALE  
 

 
Following significant flooding in October and November 2019 the 
Environment and Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
16th January 2020 agreed to set up a flooding scrutiny review panel 
to consider the role of the Council as Lead Local Flood Authority 
(LLFA) and its links with other risk management authorities (RMAs). 
 
Although the Council has a good relationship with partners involved 
in responding to flooding, there is a current interest amongst 
Members regarding accountability, engagement and effectiveness of 
existing structures, in regard to how the LLFA co-ordinates and 
effects action from those partners. The lack of influence the County 
Council has as LLFA over recommendations arising from its Section 
19 Investigations and its influence with other RMAs are also a cause 
for concern. 
  

PURPOSE OF 
REVIEW 
/OBJECTIVES 
 

(a) To clarify the statutory role of the Council as LLFA and 
Highways Authority in relation to flooding; 

 
(b) To consider the effectiveness of existing processes and 

procedures in relation to: 
 

 Responses to planning applications as LLFA; 

 Highways drainage;  

 Flooding events; 

 Section 19 Investigations. 
 

(c) To examine the partnership arrangements currently in place 
with RMAs such as the Environment Agency and Local 
Planning Authorities; 

 
(d) To understand the role of Sustainable urban Drainage 

Systems (SuDS);  
 

(e) To consider where lessons could be learned to help mitigate 
future impacts on communities; 

 
(f) To manage expectations for preventing flooding events 

occurring from extreme weather events and the LLFA and 
Highways Authority response to these as well as the role 
played by other RMAs and riparian owners. 

 
g)  To consider future demand and resources. 

7 Agenda Item 4



 

TIMESCALE 
 

August – December 2020 

METHODOLOGY/ 
APPROACH 
 

 Legislative background; 

 Understand current practice with information and 
presentations including real examples of: 

o Responding to planning applications as LLFA 
o Flooding events 
o Section 19 Investigations 
o Highways drainage  

 To talk to other RMAs such as Severn Trent and the 
Environment Agency;   

 Hear the views of communities affected. 
 

OUTCOMES  

 For Members to understand the role and remit of the Council 
as LLFA and Highways Authority in relation to flooding and 
the extent of resources available to undertake those roles. 
 

 For Members to understand the role of other agencies in 
relation to flood events.  

 

 Clearer working relationship with other partners to transform 
the way Leicestershire responds to flooding; 

 

 To provide recommendations on actions to improve current 
practice, improve accountability, engagement and 
effectiveness in relation to flood related events and flood risk 
management. 

 
 

CONSULTATION/ 
COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Consultations to be undertaken with:- 
 

- Severn Trent 
- Environment Agency 
- Local Planning Authorities (via written representation) 
- The Local Resilience Partnership 
- Communities affected 

 

PUBLICITY A press release may be issued when the final report is published. 
 
 

RISKS AND 
BARRIERS 

 

 There is a risk that the review could focus on issues outside of 
its scope; 
 

 Members expectations may go beyond the statutory powers of 
Leicestershire County Council and available resources.  

 

 The review could identify issues which cannot be resolved 
locally, and consideration would therefore need to be given to 
the most appropriate escalation route; 

 

 Timescales may slip depending on the capacity and 
availability of relevant officers and partners. 

8



 
 

 
Signed by the Scrutiny Commissioners: 
 
 
Mr S. J. Galton CC……………………………………….Date……………………. 
 
 
Dr T. Eynon CC…..……………………………………… Date……………………. 
 
 
Mrs R. Page CC…………………………………………. Date……………………. 
 
 
Mr P Bedford CC………………………………….. Date……………………. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

9



This page is intentionally left blank



Scrutiny Review Panel – Flooding 
 

DRAFT WORK PROGRAMME  
 

 
DATE 

(to be confirmed) 
 

 
ITEM 

 

Meeting 1 – 18th 
August 2020 

 Scoping Template for Scrutiny Review Panel/Conduct of 
Scrutiny Review Panels 

 Draft Work Programme for the Scrutiny Review Panel 

 Legislative Background 

 Overview of Flooding in Leicestershire. 

 Role of LCC as HA and LLFA. 
 

Meeting 2 –  

 To consider the effectiveness of existing processes and 
procedures in relation to:- 

 Planning Applications 

 Flooding Events 

 Section 19 Investigations 

 Highways Drainage 
 

 Role of Sustainable urban Drainage Systems. 
 

Meeting 3 –  

 To examine partnership arrangements currently in place 
(invite comments from partners, invite Severn Trent, 
Environment Agency, invite representations from 
Districts) 

Meeting 4 –  Draft Report and Recommendations 

Meeting 5 –  Final Report to be agreed. 

 
 

 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



1

Flooding

Scrutiny Review Panel

18th August 2020

Ian Vears,

Assistant Director, Environment and Transport

13
A

genda Item
 5



2

Background

▪ Following significant flooding in October and November 2019 the Environment and 

Transport Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 16th January 2020 agreed to set 

up a flooding scrutiny review panel to consider the role of the Council as Lead 

Local Flood Authority (LLFA) and its links with other Risk Management 

Authorities (RMAs).

▪ Although the Council has a good relationship with partners involved in responding 

to flooding, there is currently a perceived problem regarding accountability, 

engagement and effectiveness of existing structures, especially in regards to how 

the Council as LLFA responds to planning applications dealt with by Local 

Planning Authorities (LPAs). The lack of influence the County Council has as 

LLFA over recommendations arising from its Section 19 Investigations and its 

influence with other RMAs are also a cause for concern.

14



3

Purpose of Review

▪ To clarify the statutory role of the Council as LLFA and Highway Authority (HA) 

in relation to flooding;

▪ To consider the effectiveness of existing processes and procedures in relation to 

resource for;

▪ Responses to planning applications as LLFA;

▪ Highways drainage; 

▪ Flooding events;

▪ Section 19 Investigations.

▪ To examine the partnership arrangements currently in place;

▪ To understand the development and role of Sustainable Drainage Systems 

(SuDS); 

▪ To consider where lessons could be learned to help minimise future impacts on 

communities;

▪ To manage expectations for preventing flooding events  occurring from extreme 

weather events. 

15



4

Proposed Outcomes

▪ •For Members to understand the role and remit of the Council as LLFA and 

Highways Authority in relation to flooding and the extent of resources available to 

undertake those roles;

▪ •For Members to understand the role of other agencies in relation to flood events. 

▪ •Clearer working relationship with other partners to transform the way 

Leicestershire responds to flooding;

▪ •To provide recommendations on actions to improve current practice, improve 

accountability, engagement and effectiveness in relation to flood related events 

and flood risk management.

16



5

Background to Lead Local Flood Authority 

▪ After the floods of 2007 the government commissioned a review, which 

recommended that local authorities should lead on the management of local flood 

risk, with the support of the relevant organisations. This 2008 report (titled 

‘Learning Lessons from the 2007 floods’) is known as The Pitt Review. This led to 

the Flood and Water Management Act 2010 (FWMA).

▪ As a result of this Act, Leicestershire County Council became a Lead Local Flood 

Authority (LLFA) and has specific powers and duties for coordinating the 

management of local flood risk. This is the flood risk from local sources, which are: 

Ordinary Watercourses (e.g. ditches, streams and small rivers), surface water 

(overland runoff) and groundwater in the geographic area of Leicestershire.

▪ Further to this, changes to National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) were 

made and the Town and County Planning (Development Management 

procedure) (England) Order was amended making Leicestershire County 

Council, in its role as Lead Local Flood Authority (LLFA), a statutory consultee in 

the planning process for major development proposals which have surface water 

implications, as of 15th April 2015.

17

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/2007_United_Kingdom_floods
http://webarchive.nationalarchives.gov.uk/20100702215619/http:/archive.cabinetoffice.gov.uk/pittreview/thepittreview/final_report.html
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/29


6

Flood Risk Management Bodies 

▪ Government: DEFRA is the policy lead for flood and coastal erosion risk management in 

England and set national policy & legislation. Provides governance through the Regional

Flood and Costal Committees (RFCC). MHCLG sets out national planning framework 

for development and flood risk. 

▪ Environment Agency (under DEFRA): has a strategic overview of all flooding and 

costal erosion, is responsible for costal erosion and ‘Main River’ management activities, 

provides flood forecasts and warnings, facilitates and operates the RFCCs. 

▪ District / Borough Councils: Often first response for flooding events (non-statutory), 

and are a Land Drainage Authority (LDA), retaining some powers under the Land 

Drainage Act (LDA).

▪ Water / sewerage companies: manage flood risk from supplies (reservoirs and pipes), 

and public sewerage/drainage systems. Severn Trent Water and Anglian Water

▪ Highway Authority: providing and managing highway drainage systems.

▪ Highways England: providing and managing drainage systems on Strategic Road 

Networks (SRN).  

▪ Internal Drainage Boards (IDBs): A very small part of the Trent Valley IDB is within 

Leicestershire. These are set up as independent public bodies responsible for managing 

water levels in low-lying areas. 

18



7

Regional Flood and Coastal Committees 

These DEFRA established and Environment Agency facilitated committees;

▪ ensure there are coherent plans for identifying, communicating and managing 

flood and coastal erosion risks across catchments and shorelines

▪ encourage efficient, targeted and risk-based investment in flood and coastal 

erosion risk management that represents value for money and benefits local 

communities

▪ provide a link between the Environment Agency, Lead Local Flood Authority 

(LLFA), other risk management authorities, and other relevant bodies to build 

understanding of flood and coastal erosion risks in its area.

RFCCs are set up on natural water catchment areas, with Leicestershire being 

covered by three committee areas: the ‘Trent’, ‘Anglian Northern’ and ‘Severn & 

Wye’ areas (see next slide).  

LCC bid to the RFCCs to support projects that reduce flooding risk to properties and 

businesses (note, these monies are not for highway drainage maintenance).  

19



8

RFCC Areas in Leicestershire 

20



9

Overview of Flooding in Leicestershire

❑ In the past 12 months there have a numbers of significant storm events that 

have led to internal property flooding within the county.  

❑ Details of October and November 2019 storms and flooding and can be found 

here in the Scrutiny report of 16th January 2020; 

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=6200&Ver=4

❑ February 2020 brought 3 named storms, Storm Ciara on 2nd Feb, Storm 

Dennis on 15th & 16th Feb and Storm Jorge on 1st March. 

❑ North West Leicestershire and Charnwood districts have been affected the 

worst from these storms and account for the majority of cases of internal 

property flooding. 

21

http://politics.leics.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=1044&MId=6200&Ver=4


10

Recent flooding events in Leicestershire
❑ Flooded properties in 2020

❑ Enquiries logged for February storms

Properties Flooded

February 2020 Storms Ciara, Dennis 

and Jorge

90

June 2020 Heavy rainfall late 

afternoon

32

Total 122

NWL Charnwood Melton Oadby & 

Wigston

Harborough Blaby Hinckley 

& 

Bosworth

February 2020 55 23 10 0 0 1 1

June 2020 2 22 0 2 4 0 2

Total 57 55 10 2 4 1 4

Trees 

fallen

Flooding (properties 

and Highways)

Sandbag 

requests Total Callouts

Ciara 178 11 0 189

Dennis 46 116 20 184

Jorge 2 23 2 25

Total 226 150 22 398

22



11

February 2020 flooding map
23



12

June 2020 flooding map
24



13

LLFA statutory duties (FWMA and LDA) 

▪ under Section 9 of the FWMA – prepare and maintain a strategy for local flood 

risk management for Leicestershire, coordinating views and activity with other 

local bodies and communities through public consultation and scrutiny, and 

delivery planning (published 2015).

▪ under Section 21 of the FWMA – maintain a register of assets that are physical 

features that have a significant effect on flooding.

▪ under Section 19 of FWMA – carry out investigations and publish the results, 

informing risk management authorities (RMA) of their duties to exercise their flood 

risk management functions. Key point: The LLFA does not have a duty to 

implement a solution to a flooding incident and does not have funding 

allocated to deliver flood related works. It also does not have powers to 

force other RMAs to undertake flood related work under their responsibility. 

25



14

LLFA Statutory duties cont.

▪ under S23 of LDA – issue consents for altering, removing or replacing certain 

structures or features on ordinary watercourses

▪ statutory consultee on major development (10 or more dwellings or areas 

over 1 hectare) planning applications in respect of surface water drainage 

matters. 

▪ The LLFA should play a lead role in emergency planning and recovery after a 

flood event. For Leicestershire County Council, Leicester City Council and 

Rutland County Council,  this function is fulfilled by ‘LLR Prepared’ -

https://www.llrprepared.org.uk/

26

https://www.llrprepared.org.uk/


15

LLFA non statutory duties 

▪ respond to minor planning applications, particularly where there is a known/ 

evidenced flooding concern.

▪ develop and implement a programme of Flood Resilience schemes, that draws on 

RFCC /government funding. Key point: this funding is prioritised for flood 

defence work, that reduces the risk of flooding to homes and properties (i.e. 

it is not available for general highway maintenance / drainage repair works).

▪ investigate the cause of flooding incidents that do not trigger a statutory 

investigation (Section 19).

▪ proactive communication with other RMAs, other stakeholders and customers, to 

help others understand roles and responsibilities, particularly the Riparian 

Landowner duty to maintain Ordinary Watercourses.

▪ develop and share flooding and drainage best practice.

27



16

Tasks not delivered by LLFA 

There is a common misconception that LCC as Lead Local Flood Authority has a duty 

to resolve all flood related matters. The LLFA role is intended to give one organisation 

a strategic overview of flood risk within a local geographic area.  Below are some of 

the tasks that LCC does not have a role:

▪ Resolving flooding issues:  whilst the LLFA investigates certain flooding events, 

there is no obligation on the LLFA to implement a solution as this would normally 

sit the affected landowner. 

▪ Maintain Ordinary Watercourses: the responsibility of maintenance falls to the 

riparian landowner.

▪ Planning enforcement:  there is an expectation that the LLFA enforces on 

developments that they have provided advice on. This function sits with the Local 

Planning Authority. 

▪ Respond to Emergencies: whilst an investigation may start during an event, 

emergency response is coordinated by LLR Prepared and emergency services.

28



17

LCC as the Highways Authority

▪ Under the Highways Act 1980, the Highways Authority, (Leicestershire County Council’s 

Highways Drainage Team) have a responsibility to manage and maintain drainage 

(excluding public sewers that belong to Severn Trent Water or Anglian Water) that runs 

beneath adopted highways i.e. the drainage system related to the road network.

▪ They also have a statutory legal duty to maintain the highway which includes keeping the 

highway free from flooding, and providing adequate drainage (Section 41 of the Highways 

Act subject to the provisions of Section 58 of the Highways Act). 

▪ Section 100 of the Highways Act gives the Highway Authority, “for the purpose of draining 

or preventing surface water from flowing onto the highway the power to:  construct or lay, in 

the highway or land adjoining or lying near to the highway, such drains as they consider 

necessary;  erect barriers, to divert surface water into or through any existing drain;  scour, 

cleanse and keep open all drains situated in the highway or land adjoining or lying near to 

the highway”. On highways liable to flooding to a considerable depth, the Highway Authority 

has a duty to provide graduated posts or stones indicating the depth of water covering the 

highway where it is considered necessary or desirable – this is an important point, as this 

demonstrates that the Highway Authority does not have to prevent highway flooding in all 

instances. 

29



18

LCC as the Highways Authority

Highway drainage systems are designed to manage the rainwater that lands on the 

highway only, both to prevent flooding and to protect the road surface. They can include 

a wide variety of features including: 

▪ Roadside drains and channels/gullies (approximately 136,000 gullies over 2,575 

miles of road)

▪ Shallow channels that convey water off the road into a drainage ditch (known as 

grips). (Approximately 50,000).

▪ Ponds and lagoons 

▪ Inspection chambers, catchpits and manholes 

▪ Underground culverts (1200 approx.)

▪ Soakaways

▪ Key point: Prior to 2002, District and Borough Councils had Agency Agreements 

with both Highway Authorities and Water Authorities for the maintenance of 

assets. The Water Authority Agreements covered all areas within the District, the 

Highway Agreements covered a limited area, usually urban centres within the 

District. When the respective agreements came to an end very few highway asset 

records were transferred over to LCC for highway drainage.

30



19

Future Meetings

▪ To consider the effectiveness of existing processes and procedures in relation to:-

▪ Planning Applications

▪ Flooding Events

▪ Section 19 Investigations

▪ Highways Drainage

▪ Role of Sustainable urban Drainage Systems.

▪ To examine partnership arrangements currently in place (invite comments from 

partners, invite Severn Trent, Environment Agency, invite representations from 

Districts)

▪ Drafting a report along with recommendations.

▪ Agreeing and publishing final report. 

31



20

Resources / background documents

▪ Flood and Water Management Act 2010:

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/29

▪ Highways Act 1980:

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1980/66

▪ House of Commons Cabinet Briefing : 

Flood Risk Management and Funding (November 2017)

http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-7514/CBP-7514.pdf

▪ Government advice to Riparian Landowners:

Owning a Watercourse (15 February 2018)

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/owning-a-watercourse

(This guidance is summarized by the attached EA leaflet, ‘Living On the Edge’)

▪ Leicestershire County Council Flood Risk Management Strategy:

https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/environment-and-planning/flooding-and-

drainage/flood-risk-management

32

https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/29
https://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/1980/66
http://researchbriefings.files.parliament.uk/documents/CBP-7514/CBP-7514.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/owning-a-watercourse
https://www.leicestershire.gov.uk/environment-and-planning/flooding-and-drainage/flood-risk-management

	Agenda
	3 Conduct of Scrutiny Review Panels.
	Appendix - Meetings Process

	4 Scoping Document and Work Programme.
	Draft Work Programme.

	5 Flooding Presentation.

